NIGEL O. DAVIS #L2857

FILED

MAR 0 5 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS J. F. C. F

279 HWY 33

FAYETTE, MS 39069

(

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT

COURT CLERK

JACKSON, MS

RE: FILING OF THE ENCLOSED "Brief in Support of Appeal"

#2007-56-00224-COA

Dear Court Clerk,

Enclosed is my "Brief in Support of Appeal" in cause no. C2006-160 from Calhoun County Circuit Court decision.

Please accept this notice for filing with the Mississippi Supreme Court in your usual manner, and return a copy to me marked filed to the address heading this letter.

Thank you,

Nigel O. Davis # L2857

IN THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS

NIGEL O. DAVIS

APELLANT

VS.

ISSUES AT HAND

- 1. The Mississippi Supreme Court revised the statute under which the appellant was sentenced (97-21-33) in a 2005 legislative session. This new law lowered the penalty for forgery from 2-15 years to 2-10 years (see attached ex b).
- 2. The Mississippi Supreme Court observed that under the old law the amount of an utterance was too low (then 100.00 dollars or more) and revised it to 500.00 or more, which resulted in felony convictions that could best be punishable by fines and/or

restitution, county jail time, or both under misdemeanor status, ultimately saving the taxpayers money, and reducing prison overcrowding.

- 3. The appellants forgeries were clearly under the determined amount of 500.00 for felony cases, this should allow the appellant to be re-sentenced under the new law.
- 4. The statute regarding Post Conviction Collateral Relief (99-39-1 et seq) states clearly that an intervening decision by the Mississippi Supreme court is grounds for Post Conviction Relief.
- 5. On January 17, 2007, the Honorable Judge Andrew Howorth issued an order denying relief stating: (see exhibit a)

"After reviewing the document filed by Defendant in relation to the Motion for Post Conviction Collateral Relief, as well as the court file in this case, and considering all matters in a <u>light most favorable to the Defendant</u>, the Court is of the opinion that the Defendant is not entitled to the requested relief. Accordingly all requested relief is denied."

The appellant contends that no such regard was given to him by the Calhoun County Court, as any right minded jurist would surely see that even if a 'light most favorable to the Defendant' were not used, the law is the law regarding decisions by the Mississippi Supreme Court.

6. The Calhoun County Court gave no reason for their decision in its response. No statute

or case law was cited. In short, the appellant finds it difficult to appeal this decision, because it seems to be baseless.

7. The Calhoun County court seemed to respond more to the fact that the petitioner failed to file the appropriate paperwork to be given In Forma Pauperis status, for which it went into great detail describing the error. As stated in the prior Notice of Appeal, the appellant is not a lawyer, he filed an affidavit of poverty, and failed to file a motion for informa pauperis. This could have easily been corrected if the appellant would have been told of his mistake.(see ex a) He has responded to this denial by filing a Motion for leave to appeal In forma Pauperis, with the lower court. It has not been answered as of this date.

STATEMENT OF CASE

The appellant was convicted in Calhoun County Circuit Court on August 4, 2004, on the charges of Uttering a Forgery (two counts) and was sentenced to serve 1 year in the custody of MDOC. He was currently serving time on another charge in another county.

In November of 2006 Appellant filed a motion to the court titled Petition to Clarify Sentence. It was denied by Calhoun County Judge Howarth on January 17, 2007 (see ex a).

State statute 99-39-1 et seq, states that the petitioner may appeal this decision to a higher court. Appellant seeks such redress. Because of the aforementioned issues, the appellant feels that this case should be remanded to the Calhoun County Court for resentencing under the new law. Because of the revision of 97-21-33, the most that the appellant could be charged with would be a misdemeanor, and/or fines or restitution.

SUMMARY

The decision of this court to lower the penalty for the charge of Uttering a forgery is a good one. The prison system is too full at this time to house an inmate who, though he committed a crime, it is not serious enough to require prison time. The appellant asks to be given the rights determined by this Mississippi Supreme Court, to be sentenced appropriately under the law. Appellant hopes that this Honorable court will receive this, his Brief in Support of Appeal, and render a decision favorable to him.

ARGUMENT

The argument for this case is simple. The appellant was convicted under a law, which the Mississippi Supreme Court found to be unjust. He was sentenced to 1 year incarceration for his offense, which the Supreme Court said should only be a misdemeanor. (see Miss Supreme Court ruling ex. b)

State statute 99-39-1 et seq. states that a petitioner is able to file a motion for post conviction relief because of an "intervening decision" by the Supreme Court. The County Court of Calhoun, disagreed with this issue, and denied his post conviction relief, stating that they considered the relief in a light most favorable to the petitioner. However, that light failed to shine upon the law of the Mississippi Supreme Court.

CONCLUSION

The appellant seeks to have the decision by the Calhoun County Circuit court

overturned, and to be able to be resentenced under the revision of the law made by the

Mississippi Supreme Court, regarding Uttering a Forgery. He further request that this

felony be stricken from his record, and replaced with the misdemeanor that it is.

Appellant is more than agreeable to pay any restitution set by the court, or fines for

such crime, he however is not agreeable to have a felony on his record, that he did not

commit.