IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

**COPY**

**NIGEL O'NEIL DAVIS**

**APPELLANT**

**VS.**

**FILED**

**JUL 26 2007**

**NO. 2007-CP-0224**

OFFICE OF THE CLERK  
SUPREME COURT  
COURT OF APPEALS

**STATE OF MISSISSIPPI**

**APPELLEE**

**BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE**

**APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT**

**JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL**

**BY: STEPHANIE B. WOOD  
SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL  
MISSISSIPPI BAR NO. [REDACTED]**

**OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL  
POST OFFICE BOX 220  
JACKSON, MS 39205-0220  
TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680**

**

**STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES**

Nigel O. Davis [hereinafter "Davis"] raised seven issues on appeal. For simplification purposes, the State of Mississippi combined these issues as follows:

- I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DENIED DAVIS'S PETITION TO CLARIFY SENTENCE.

**STATEMENT OF FACTS**

Davis was indicted for two counts of uttering a forgery by a grand jury in Calhoun County, Mississippi in June of 2002. (Record p. 8 - 9). This indictment was based on Davis's forgery of two checks, each in the amount of \$253.81. (Record p. 8 - 9). On August 9, 2004, Davis pled guilty to both counts of uttering a forgery. (Record p. 16). Davis was sentenced to serve one year in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections for each count along with fees and restitution. (Record p. 16).

On November 7, 2006, Davis filed a Petition to Clarify Sentence claiming that "the sentence imposed is ambiguous in that the Mississippi Supreme Court revised the statute regarding the penalty

for Forgery (97-21-33) in a 2005 legislative session.” (Record p. 1). The trial court denied Davis’s Petition. (Record p. 18). Davis now appeals that decision.

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

The trial court properly denied Davis’s Petition to Clarify Sentence as the trial court had discretion in sentencing Davis according to the sentencing statute in question.

### **ARGUMENT**

Davis was sentenced under Mississippi Code Annotated §97-21-33 prior to the 2003 amendment which read as follows:

“Persons convicted of forgery shall be punished by imprisonment in the penitentiary for a term of not less than two (2) years nor more than fifteen (15) years, provided, however, that when the amount of value involved is less than one hundred dollars (\$100.00) in lieu of the punishment above provided for, the person convicted may be punished by imprisonment in the county jail for a term of not more than twelve (12) months, within the discretion of the court.”

Section 97-21-33 was subsequently amended and now reads as follows:

Persons convicted of forgery shall be punished by imprisonment in the Penitentiary for a term of not less than two (2) years nor more than ten (10) years, or by a fine of not more than Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00), or both; provided, however, that when the amount of value involved is less than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) in lieu of the punishment above provided for, the person convicted may be punished by imprisonment in the county jail for a term of not more than six (6) months, or by a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), or both, within the discretion of the court.

Davis contends that because this statute was amended and applies to cases from July 1, 2003 and forward, that “the most that [he] could be charged with would be a misdemeanor and/or fines or restitution.” (Appellant’s Brief). He basically argues that because the checks he forged were under \$500.00 that he should be, at most, sentenced to not more than six months in the county jail and a fine. (Appellant’s Brief).

A similar argument was made in *Davis v. State*, in which this Honorable Court held that the

forgery sentencing statute “grants the trial judge discretion in sentencing individuals.” 758 So.2d 463, 467 (Miss. Ct. App. 2000). The Court further held that while the statute does allow for a more lenient sentence for forgeries of lesser amounts, the statute also “allows the trial judge to sentence an individual convicted of uttering a forgery to the maximum” sentence. *Id.* In so holding, the Court noted the legislature’s use of the word “may” in the statute. *Id.* Therefore, the trial court acted within its discretion in sentencing Davis to one year for each count of uttering a forgery as the sentence was within the statutory authority given the court.